
AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, February 28, 2024 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Joe Magliola (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard Sutherland, Scott Somers  
(non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report

5. Committee Reports
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

6. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: January 31, 2024
2) BOD Work Session Minutes: February 14, 2024

B. Financial Statements:
1) January Financials

7. Action Items
A. Accept FAC Recommendation to Accept Café Report (Carden)
B. Approve Proposed 2024 Work Plan (Somers)
C. Approve BAC Recommendations for CPM Part 6, Section 2 GVR Clubs, 6.2.8 (Crothers)
D. Approve BAC Recommendations for CPM Part 1, Section 2 Use of GVR Facilities (Crothers)
E. Wallyball Club Application (Whitman) 

F. P&E Recommendation for Ceramics Kiln Room Enhancements (Bachelor) 

8. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes. Speakers are asked to provide their name and GVR member
number. This time is for comments, not for questions and answers.

9. Adjournment



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, January 31, 2024 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Joe Magliola (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard Sutherland, Scott 
Somers (non-voting) 

Staff Present: Steve Mendoza (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), 
Howey Murray (Finance Manager), David Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki 
(Member Services Director)   

Visitors: 13 Including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2:04pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the
roll; quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Lawless moved, Director Gilbert seconded to Amend the Agenda by
adding under Action Item a discussion on separating the Candidate Forum from the bylaws’
discussion.
Passed: 8 yes / no 4 (Austin, Blake, Garneau, Hillyer)

AMENDMENT TO THE MOTION: Director Dingman moved, Director Lawless seconded to add
discuss in the MOTION.
Passed: 8 yes / 4 no (Austin, Blake, Garneau, Hillyer)

3. Presentations:
A. Quarterly Financial Report

David Webster, CFO, reviewed the quarterly financial report. Highlights include:
• Under budget by 17 percent due mainly to home sales. This is 1.2 percent less

than the prior year, 2022. Last year budget was projected for 1,100 home sales
and the final number was 990. For 2024, the projected home sales are 950. In
January, the projection was for 86 home sales and currently is at 67 homes as
of January 31.

• Expense side was under budget by 1.1 percent. Personnel was 11 percent
under budget. Many of the personnel costs were allocated to outsourcing
custodial services and Human Resources.

• Surplus was a deficit of $161,389. There will be no surplus transfer this year.
• GVR investments’ benchmarks were not all met, but were still positive.

Consent Agenda 6.A.1

1



B. New Website
Natalie Whitman, COO, presented the new GVR website. Highlights include:

• The late launch of the website was due to the contractor making big changes in
their business and outsourcing parts of the projects leading to a lack of
cohesiveness within the project.

• The new website has an updated look with the menu for all GVR activities
clearly on the home page, but also on every page to make it easier to navigate
through the website without having to return to the home page.

• On the home page, there is a ribbon with important announcements.
• The calendar is clearly on the home page.
• A new tool on the home page at the top is Info Hub/Pool Availability. Members

can view pool availability and view real-time Facility Use. Closed Today (pools,
etc.) will be at the top of the page for current information.

• This website has large blocks to help navigate easily through the website.
• The Contact Us form is easy to find: Go to About GVR (located at the top of the

page) and then click the About Us block. Once the form is filled out and
submitted, it will automatically go the GVR Hotline. More forms will be
developed over time to make submission easier and will eliminate email.

• Under the Centers & Reservations tab there are hours for Centers,
downloadable map, Center Reservation, and an interactive map for each
Center. On the interactive map, choose a Center and see the activities in the
Center along with available rooms.

• The new website is currently online and more will be added to it.

4. Committee Reports - All reports received and placed on file.
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

5. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Sutherland seconded to approve Consent
Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: November 15, 2023
 BOD Work Session Minutes: January 17, 2024
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: January 24, 2024

B. Financial Statements:
 November and December Financials

6. Action Items
A. Audit Committee Proposed Changes to the CPM Part 3, Section 5

MOTION: Director Austin moved, Director Crothers seconded to accept the Audit
Committee responsibility as amended by the Audit Committee.

2



MOTION TO AMEND: Director Dingman moved, Director Gilbert seconded to amend the 
motion that 3.5.1 state, “To the extent possible, the Audit Committee shall have at least 
two GVR members who should have knowledge of financial reporting and internal 
control procedures. The committee shall have no fewer than three and no more than 
five members. Add a comma on 3.5.2.B.3 after opinion.  
Passed: 8 yes / 4 no (Blake, Carden, Hillyer, Magliola)   

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Lawless moved, Director Bachelor seconded to remove 
the word “independent” from 3.5.2.A.  
Failed: 3 yes (Bachelor, Lawless, Gilbert) / 9 no 

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Bachelor moved to delete 3.5.2.B.7. Failed for lack of 
second. 

AMENDED MOTION PASSED: unanimous 

Amended Motion: Accept the Audit Committee responsibility with the first sentence of 
3.5.1 to read, “To the extent possible, the Audit Committee shall have at least two GVR 
members who should have knowledge of financial reporting and internal control 
procedures. The committee shall have no fewer than three and no more than five 
members.” Add a comma on 3.5.2.B.3 after opinion.   

B. Board Affairs Committee Recommendations for Elections 2024
1) Ballot Format

MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Sutherland seconded to approve the
proposed bylaw amendments ballot format.
Passed: 10 yes / 2 no (Bachelor, Lawless)

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Lawless moved, Director Bachelor seconded to
remove in the first paragraph on the ballot number two that states: “Optimize
the efficiency of administrative staff operations.”
Failed: 5 yes (Bachelor, Blake, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless) / 6 no (Director Hillyer
was out of the room for the vote and did not vote.)

2) Director Transition Process (12 to 9)
MOTION: Director Sutherland moved, Director Dingman seconded to accept
option 2 in the Meeting Book that states: “Seat three new Directors each year
and replace resigning Directors as we have done in the past. It will take the full
three election cycles to get down to nine Directors.”
Passed: unanimous (Director Carden was out of the room for the vote and did
not vote.)

C. Discuss the Forums to Separate Candidate Forum from Bylaws
MOTION: Director Lawless moved, Director Gilbert seconded to discuss the proposed
bylaw changes with the members at a separate time or day from the Candidate Forums.
Failed: 4 yes (Bachelor, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless) / 8 no

MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Carden seconded to allow the Candidate
Forum to extend longer to cover the proposed bylaws’ changes whether in the beginning
or at the end of the forum.
Passed: unanimous

3



D. CEO Report
Scott Somers, CEO, presented these updates:

• Santa Rita Springs water heater update: Scheduled for installation February 7,
Wednesday.

• Glass Arts Studio: February 9, Friday, target date for certificate of occupancy.
• Casa Poloma I: Water heater is fixed and running.
• Del Sol Clubhouse: On schedule.
• Security Cameras: All major centers have between three to six cameras installed.

The wire and infrastructure still needs to be completed. Cameras are located
primarily in main entrances and lobbies.

7. Member Comments – No comments 

8. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Hillyer seconded to adjourn the meeting at 4:02
pm.
Passed: unanimous

4



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION 

Wednesday, February 14, 2024, 3pm 
WC Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors Present: Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer 
(Secretary), Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Joe Magliola (Assistant 
Treasurer), Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Richard Sutherland, Scott 
Somers (non-voting) 

Absent: Nancy Austin 

Staff Present: Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), 
Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director)  

Visitors: 0 

AGENDA TOPIC 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
Work Session Called to Order at 3:06pm by President Garneau. Secretary Hillyer called the
roll.

2. Amend / Approve Agenda
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the Agenda as
presented.
Passed: unanimous

3. Review and Discuss Proposed 2024 Work Plan
Highlights of Board discussion and consensus of changes to areas of the Work Plan:

• Under Administration/CEO 5.6.1 change third bullet to GVC not GVR.
• Under Board and Committees add 5.2.1 Review the Strategic Plan regularly to ensure

progress on action items and continuity year-over-year with the plans. (See
Administration/CEO). Add 5.4.1 Encourage staff and Board to attend training
conferences and participate in professional associations. Add bullet to this stating:
Survey Board of Directors for what they would like for training.

• Under Facilities Department remove second bullet under 1.2.5 and remove all of 1.3.1.
Add a bullet to 4.4.3 that states: Consider approaches that minimize closures.

• Under Finance Department add “such as cash management policies” under 4.3.1.
Delete “With Investment Committees and Board” under 4.3.3 and start sentence with
“Continue utilizing…” Add a bullet under 4.3.4 that states: “Budget for Initiatives
projects.”

• Under Human Resources add in 3.2.1 “Board and” to read “With Board and
Recreation…”

Consent Agenda 6.A.2

5



• Under Recreation Department add a bullet under 1.4.1 to read “Identify additional
social gathering opportunities.

4. Discuss BAC Recommendations for CPM Part 1, Section 2 Use of GVR Facilities
Highlights of Board discussion and consensus of changes to areas of the CPM Part 1, Section 2
Use of GVR Facilities:

• Scheduling activities and events at GVR has become increasingly difficult due to
policies being overly permissible. GVR allows members to reserve rooms for free and
this has been taken advantage of by individuals and groups. GVR needs to tighten the
policies to open up more availability for all members.

• 1.2.6.A.1.d: Club activities will be reviewed in the future, but no changes at this time to
reservations for clubs.

• 1.2.6.B will be changed from “Club and HOA meetings are limited to non-peak hours:
after 2pm on weekdays and during all operating hours on the weekend.” To Club and
HOA business meetings (vs. club activities and socials) are limited to non-peak hours
from October through April: after 2pm on weekdays and any time on weekends.

• Staff will work on 1.2.8.C regarding whether GVR will continue to have a caterers’ list
or will have the Member using the facility provide caterer’s health department
paperwork or a combination of the two.

• In 1.2.6.A.1.f complimentary private member function (HOA socials, birthday parties,
etc.) may meet every other month and six hours per event.

5. Adjournment: The Work Session adjourned at 4:43pm.

6



Consent Agenda 6.B.1

7



8



9



10



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting
Del Sol Café Subcommittee Report 

Prepared By: David Webster, CFO    Meeting Date: February 28, 2024 

Presented By: Jim Carden, Treasurer  Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Café Subcommittee 

Action Requested: 
Accept the Café Subcommittee Report and Business Plan for the Del Sol Clubhouse Café 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities 

Background Information: 
To address the members’ needs for a social gathering space and to meet the goal of GVR to 
“expand/repurpose facilities to promote and encourage social gathering, including the 
exploration of opening a coffee shop”, the FAC Café Subcommittee researched and 
developed a business plan to establish an in-house, GVR operated café at the Del Sol 
Clubhouse.  Please recall, at the November 16, 2022, Board meeting, the Board passed the 
following motion: 

MOTION: To continue moving forward with a vision of creating a social gathering 
recreation center.  Build out the entire building to include the lower level to accommodate 
a minimum of 5 billiards and pool tables and other game-type activities, adding restrooms, 
a lift or elevator, and a stairwell to connect the two levels; and by seeking a solution to 
provide a wide variety of food and beverage options (such as a vendor). 

The Café Subcommittee met on February 5, 2024, and adopted the following motion to be 
submitted to the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) at its February 19th meeting:  

Adopt the Subcommittee report which includes the following: 
a. Release the CY 2024 funds and positions included in the budget to open a self-

operated café in the Del Sol Clubhouse, offering limited food and beverages;
b. Approval of the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) language change to allow access to

the café for non-GVR member patrons for a daily fee of $1.00;
c. Approval of the CPM language change to allow pets on the front patio only;
d. Release the $50K for the completion of the kitchen/café area and purchase of

equipment and supplies.

Action Item 7.A

11



Staff reported to the FAC that a vendor option is being explored as an alternative to GVR 
operating a café. The FAC recommends the following to the Board of Directors:  

Accept the Café Subcommittee report and adopt the CPM language changes to allow access 
to the café for non-GVR member patrons for a daily fee of $1.00 and to allow pets on the 
front patio only; and release the budgeted $50,000 for startup costs which will need to be 
expended regardless of whether GVR secures a vendor to operate a café or elects to 
operate a café in-house.  

Fiscal Impact: 
Budgeted startup costs are $50,000. 

Board Options: 
1) Accept the Café Subcommittee report and adopt the CPM language changes at this

time; and release the budgeted $50,000 for startup costs which will need to be
expended regardless of whether GVR secures a vendor to operate a café or elects to
operate a café in-house.

2) Accept the Café Subcommittee report without adopting any CPM language changes at
this time; and release the budgeted $50,000 for startup costs at a later time.

3) Accept the Subcommittee report with alternative options.

FAC Recommendation: 
Option 1. 

Attachments: 
1) Subcommittee Report – Business Plan for the Del Sol Clubhouse Café.
2) Market Survey Results for Development of a Del Sol Clubhouse Café.

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



2/22/2024

1

Del Sol Subcommittee Business Plan for the Del Sol 
Café

Report to the GVR Board  

February 28,   2024

1

2

Agenda for Feb 28th FAC  Meeting on  Subcommittee on the Del Sol Café 

Business Plan 

1. Timetable/Events since the January 17th GVR

Board Work Session

2. Results of the Market Survey

3. Discussion of SubCommittee’s Recommendations

4. Motions passed by Fiscal Affairs Committee

Attachment 1

53



2/22/2024

2

Major Events since last FAC of 
January 17th

• Presented to Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) on January 16th

and the GVR Board Work Session on January 17th

• At the request of the Board, released Section II of the draft
plan  titled Past GVR Research and Studies Support Café

• Received the results of the Market Survey on January 31st

and tabulated results

• Subcommittee met on Feb 5th and finalized its
recommendations/and report;

• Business plan report as updated and released to GVR Board
Chair, Jim Carden and Scott Somers on February 9th.

• Fiscal Affairs met on February 20th and moved
recommendations.

3

Key Highlights from new Section 2 of the Business Plan
Research GVR Ad hoc Committee

• Steve Wilhelm, Chair, of Ad Hoc
Committee, presented  the  Cy 2018
Ad Hoc  committee findings; and
emphasized the benefits of a social
gathering place that included a multi‐
purpose room/ and a café as an anchor

• Dr. Ray’s Oldenburg’s developed the
concept of a Great Good Place (GGP)
that concluded” Great Good places
offer a neutral, accessible environment
like cafés, parks, and libraries. These
places play a crucial role in fostering a
sense of belonging and social cohesion
within a community

• In mid‐January 2024 Steve Wilhelm
sent a letter of support of the
Subcommittee’s Business to the GVR
Board

GVR Highlights 
• In Cy 2016 , as part of the market research 

conducted in the development GVR Strategic 
plan, GVR members expressed a desire for a café 
in conjunction with a comfortable space available 
for drop‐in socialization and a gathering place for
friends and neighbors.

• In the Cy 2018 GVR Member Survey, 74% who 
responded identified the need for a social and
community gathering space.

• In Cy 2022 as part of the GVR five‐year strategic 
plan, Goal #1 of GVR provides excellent facilities
for members to participate in a variety of active
and social opportunities. Under this Goal,
Initiative 1.4 identified the need to
expand/repurpose facilities to promote and 
encourage social gathering including the
exploration of opening a coffee shop.

• On November 16, 2022, GVR adopted a motion: 
to continue moving forward with a vision of
creating a social gathering recreation center… and
by seeking a solution to provide a wide variety of
food and beverage options (such as a vendor)

• During budget deliberations, FAC recommended 
approval of funds for the café and established a
Subcommittee to develop a business plan. In
November 2023 the GVR Board left these funds in
the budget but stated their release was
contingent on additional research.

4

54



2/22/2024

3

FAC Subcommittee Report: 

Market Survey Results for
Development of a Del Sol 
Clubhouse Café 

February 5, 2024

5

Objectives of Survey

• Ideally obtain 10% survey response rate which will provide greater
predictive value

• Obtain the input of the GVR membership to determine if the concept of
developing a cafe within the Del Sol Clubhouse is directionally correct

• Get a sense of how familiar the membership is with the Del Sol facility

• Obtain input around potential use of a coffee shop, hours of availability,
food and beverage options, delivery mode, and preferences regarding
allowing non GVR members and dogs

6

55



2/22/2024

4

Survey Results: Response, Concept, Familiarity

Out of 23,000 potential responses, we received 2230 or roughly 10%

Responses between zip codes were 47% from 85614 and 53% from
85622

Most respondents, 71%, live here year round

57% indicated they would support a food and beverage offering:
• 23% indicated maybe/unsure

• 19% indicated no

• Less than 1% did not respond

89% indicated they are familiar with the Del Sol Clubhouse and its
location

• However, only 42% have visited the facility and 58% have not

• 64% have used the Canoa Hills Trails Park

7

Survey Results: Hours of Availability Preferences

8

 Availability (hours of operation):
• Mornings to early afternoon – 47%
• Mornings to early evening – 43%
• Mornings only – 10%

56



2/22/2024

5

Survey Results: Food and Beverage Preferences

9

 Beverage preferences:
• Coffee – 19%
• Bottled Water – 13%
• Tea and Soda 12% each
• Wine – 9%
• Beer and fruit drinks ‐ 8% each
• All of the above – 17%

 Food preferences:
• Lunch sandwiches – 15%
• Pastries, breakfast sandwiches, soup and salads – 12% each
• Desserts – 9%
• Quiches – 8%
• All of the above – 21%

Survey Results: Estimated Use

10

 Estimated usage – most or 71% said they would use the café frequently or
occasionally:

• 27% said they would use the coffee shop frequently (once or twice a
week)

• 44% said they would use it occasionally (no more than twice a month)
• 11% said they  would use it infrequently (no more than twice every three

months)
• 19% left this question blank

57



2/22/2024

6

Survey Results: Delivery Option

11

 Rankings for preferences on how to deliver food and beverages were:
1. The highest ranked preference, or 35%, was for Café with limited

beverages and food
2. The second highest preference, or 32%, was for a Café with expanded

beverages, food and alcohol but not a full restaurant
3. The third preference, or 22%,  was for using food trucks
4. The fourth preference, or 10%, was for vending machines

Survey Results: Non GVR Member Access and 
Allowing Dogs

12

 Most or 59% agree that non GVR members should be allowed to use the Café
but not the rest of the facility

• 30% said no to this
• 11% did not respond

 Regarding dogs:
• 32% responded they should be allowed on both patios
• Another 32% said they should be allowed on only one patio
• 27% said dogs should not be allowed
• 10% did not respond

58



2/22/2024

7

CPM NonMember Language 
2.Guest Policy

A.Guest privileges are intended for temporary visitors of a
Regular Member, Assigned Member, Tenant, CRCF
Resident, or Life Care Member of GVR and who live outside
a twenty (20) mile distance from established GVR
boundaries.

B.GVR Members, Assigned Members, Life Care Members, and
CRCF Residents may purchase one (1) annual guest card
which allows for four (4) adults per visit with unlimited
visits. Annual guest cards are valid through the end of the
calendar year and fees are not prorated. No more than one
(1) annual guest card may be purchased by a GVR Member
regardless of the number of properties owned and may not
be purchased for tenant-occupied properties.

C.GVR Members, Assigned Members, Life Care Members,
CRCF Residents, and Tenants may purchase daily guest
cards which allow for four (4) adults on a specific day.
Exception: Del Sol Clubhouse Café will use a token fee
system for daily use when non-members purchase food or
drink.

•

• Amend the CPM Fee Chart to provide a $1.00 daily 
guest pass for the del Sol Clubhouse Café only 

13

CPM – Pet Friendly Language  
6.Use of GVR Facilities

A.Reservations
1. Reservations will be assigned in the following order:
• Board of Directors
• Recreation Staff (e.g., special events, classes, concerts,

programs, annual festivals and performances)
• Regularly scheduled club events (weekly and monthly)
• Community events (e.g., HOA) and rentals
• Club one-time special events or parties
• Private member functions
• Club additional ongoing activity requests

• Animals are not permitted in or on GVR property, except service
animals, unless otherwise authorized by the GVR Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) to accommodate community events or other special
circumstances.

• OR: Due to the public or community walking trails, Del Sol Clubhouse will allow
in the front patio seating areas only outdoor seating areas only leashed animals
under the control of their handlers at all times, well-behaved, and do not create
a disturbance or pose a threat to others. If an animal is not under control or
behaves inappropriately, the handler will be asked to remove the animal from
the premises.

14

59



2/22/2024

8

Timetable : Del Sol Construction and Impact on Café
GVR Board has included the Subcommittee’s Report on 
its February 28th Board Agenda   

DEL SOL BISTRO 

End of JuneMayApril MarchFebJanDec 

Done 
Del Sol Parking lot 
repaving/other 

Feb 
28th

Approval of Café Business plan 
by Board

open
Start prep of operational plan 
for café option  

open
Complete build out of 
café/storage area

x‐or soonerOPEN 

15

Recommendation from 
Subcommittee  

• Adopt the Subcommittee report which includes the following:
• a. Release of the Cy 2024 funds and positions  included in the budget to
open a staff-operated cafe in the Del Sol Clubhouse, offering limited food
and beverages;
• b. Approval of the CPM language change to allow longer patrons for a
nominal fee of $1.00
• c. approval of the CPM language change to allow pets on one of the
patios. '

• d. Release the $50K for the completion of the kitchen /cafe area and
purchase of equipment and supplies.
•

16

60



2/22/2024

9

FAC‐ Action Recommended to the Board  

• Move a motion to accept the Subcommittee’s Del Sol Café
Report  of February 9th ( Passed FAC unanimously)

• Move three  separate motions to implement sections of the
Report that apply to either staff‐operated or vendor‐operated
café;
• Approval of the CPM language change to allow longer

patrons for a nominal fee of $1.00 (Passed 7-1 vote)
• approval of the CPM language change to allow pets on

one of the patios. ‘Passed 7-1 vote)

• Move to adopt the Staff’s recommendation for the release
of $50K for startup (Passed FAC 7‐1 Vote)

17

61



2/22/2024

1

FAC Subcommittee Report: 

Market Survey Results for
Development of a Del Sol 
Clubhouse Café 

February 5, 2024

1

Objectives of Survey

• Ideally obtain 10% survey response rate which will provide greater
predictive value

• Obtain the input of the GVR membership to determine if the concept of
developing a cafe within the Del Sol Clubhouse is directionally correct

• Get a sense of how familiar the membership is with the Del Sol facility

• Obtain input around potential use of a coffee shop, hours of availability,
food and beverage options, delivery mode, and preferences regarding
allowing non GVR members and dogs

2

Attachment 2

62



2/22/2024

2

Survey Results: Response, Concept, Familiarity

Out of 23,000 potential responses, we received 2230 or roughly 10%

Responses between zip codes were 47% from 85614 and 53% from
85622

Most respondents, 71%, live here year round

57% indicated they would support a food and beverage offering:
• 23% indicated maybe/unsure

• 19% indicated no

• Less than 1% did not respond

89% indicated they are familiar with the Del Sol Clubhouse and its
location

• However, only 42% have visited the facility and 58% have not

• 64% have used the Canoa Hills Trails Park

3

Survey Results: Hours of Availability Preferences

4

 Availability (hours of operation):
• Mornings to early afternoon – 47%
• Mornings to early evening – 43%
• Mornings only – 10%

63



2/22/2024

3

Survey Results: Food and Beverage Preferences

5

 Beverage preferences:
• Coffee – 19%
• Bottled Water – 13%
• Tea and Soda 12% each
• Wine – 9%
• Beer and fruit drinks ‐ 8% each
• All of the above – 17%

 Food preferences:
• Lunch sandwiches – 15%
• Pastries, breakfast sandwiches, soup and salads – 12% each
• Desserts – 9%
• Quiches – 8%
• All of the above – 21%

Survey Results: Estimated Use

6

 Estimated usage – most or 71% said they would use the café frequently or
occasionally:

• 27% said they would use the coffee shop frequently (once or twice a
week)

• 44% said they would use it occasionally (no more than twice a month)
• 11% said they  would use it infrequently (no more than twice every three

months)
• 19% left this question blank

64



2/22/2024

4

Survey Results: Delivery Option

7

 Rankings for preferences on how to deliver food and beverages were:
1. The highest ranked preference, or 35%, was for Café with limited

beverages and food
2. The second highest preference, or 32%, was for a Café with expanded

beverages, food and alcohol but not a full restaurant
3. The third preference, or 22%,  was for using food trucks
4. The fourth preference, or 10%, was for vending machines

Survey Results: Non GVR Member Access and 
Allowing Dogs

8

 Most or 59% agree that non GVR members should be allowed to use the Café
but not the rest of the facility

• 30% said no to this
• 11% did not respond

 Regarding dogs:
• 32% responded they should be allowed on both patios
• Another 32% said they should be allowed on only one patio
• 27% said dogs should not be allowed
• 10% did not respond

65



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

2024 Annual Workplan
Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO Meeting Date: February 28, 2024 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: NA 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested: 
Approve the 2024 Proposed Annual Workplan 

Strategic Plan 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 
Background Justification: 
The Board of Directors reviewed and discussed the Proposed 2024 Annual Workplan during 
its February 14 Board Work Session.  The proposed Workplan coincides directly with the 
Board-approved 2022-2026 Strategic Plan. Completion of the action items identified in this 
Workplan will support fulfillment of the Strategic Plan Initiatives, Goals, and ultimately, the 
Vision of the organization.  

Fiscal Impact: 
Each item may or may not have a fiscal impact. 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the 2024 Proposed Annual Workplan as drafted.
2) Approve the 2024 Proposed Annual Workplan with amendments.
3) Provide alternative direction to staff.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 or #2 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the 2024 Proposed Annual Workplan as drafted. 

Attachments: 
1) Proposed 2024 Annual Workplan

Action Item 7.B

66



Memorandum 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Scott Somers, CEO 

CC:  GVR Senior Staff 

Date:  February 28, 2024 

RE:  2024 Annual Workplan 

Administration/CEO 

2.2.3 Develop relationships with similar organizations to share trends, best practices, and steps to 
overcome customer service challenges. 
• Survey similar organizations (April)
• Research other sectors and organizations to identify trends and best practices (May)
• With appropriate department(s), implement as necessary. (Ongoing)

5.1.1 Provide staff support to the Board of Directors to enable proactive, complete communications 
about Board decisions. 
• With Communications, synthesize Board actions/decisions to communicate with the

Members. (Ongoing)
5.2.1 Review the Strategic Plan regularly to ensure progress on action items and continuity year-over-

year with the plan. 
• Complete and present an Annual Workplan to the Board for approval. (February)
• Provide an update to the Board on the Annual Workplan as part of the CEO performance

evaluation. (December)
5.4.1 Encourage staff and Board to attend training and conferences and participate in professional 

associations. 
• Research and identify Board training opportunities. (February)

5.5.1 Develop a continuity of operations plan that includes evacuation locations, IT operations, 
personnel emergency succession, document preservation, etc. 
• Record Retention for all GVR Departments and digital preservation of records. (Ongoing)

5.6.1 Participate/partner with outside organizations such as Rotary, Chambers, GVC, GGVCF, etc. 
• Rotary Club of Green Valley membership. (Ongoing)
• GVC Executive Committee. (Ongoing)
• GVC Representative Meeting. (Monthly)
• University of Arizona Community Advisory Board member. (Ongoing)

Attachment 1

67



Board and Committees 

4.3.3 Employ sound investment strategies to maximize passive income. 
• Investment Committee and Finance. (Ongoing)

5.2.1 Review the Strategic Plan regularly to ensure progress on action items and continuity year-over-
year with the plan. (see Administration/CEO) 

5.2.3 Utilize staff liaisons and the Strategic Plan to support continuity of direction. 
• Staff liaison functions to be facilitated by Administration to ensure committee continuity.

(February)
5.6.1 Participate/partner with outside organizations such as Rotary, Chambers, GVC, GGVCF, etc.  

Communications 

1.3.3 Improve interior and exterior signage: complete, consistent, accessible, concise, and attractive. 
• Complete the Aid Station Project. (March)

1.3.4 Implement standard and electronic signage to heighten communication of activities and events.
• Improve how paper bulletins are presented in centers (December)

2.2.4 Clarify Communications’ procedures and distribute messaging to all staff so members receive 
consistent, trustworthy information from all GVR Representatives. 
• With HR, develop and document a standard operating procedure (SOP) that identifies types

of messages that need to be disseminated to various personnel. (December)
2.2.5 Develop and implement a member experience review plan related to customer service by 

department (Similar to 2.2.1) 
• See Member Services

3.3.2 Improve ease of access to GVR activity schedule and opportunities. 
• Develop and implement a social media plan. (June)
• With Recreation, develop a “getting started” program to provide instruction and supplies for

drop-in activities (September)
3.4.2 Continue to seek member feedback on a wide variety of matters via polls, surveys, in-person 

forums and virtual forums. 
• Monthly Chat with the CEO meetings. (Monthly)
• Survey members on topics as needed. (Ongoing)
• Create member forums on topics as needed. (Ongoing)

3.4.3 Publicize recreation programs, GVR events, and GVR club events via diverse communication 
channels. 
• Building further on existing Communications Plan, target non-GVR members living in opt-in

properties (Ongoing)
3.4.4 Assess and replace, as needed, current digital platforms with more accessible options. 

• With IT and Recreation, complete preliminary plans and gather bids for a new app. (June)

Facilities Department 

1.1.1 Identify accessibility improvement areas. 
• With architect, complete and document the results of an ADA audit of centers. (December)

68



1.1.3 Continue to identify and execute a process for regular upkeep and maintenance/predictive 
maintenance procedures. 
• Develop and implement center-specific Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) book for

custodial. (March)
• Improve implementation of daily/monthly/quarterly inspection reports for custodial,

aquatics, landscaping and maintenance. (Ongoing)
1.1.5 Introduce newer technology to improve energy efficiency when there are opportunities. 

• Reduce GVR’s electric energy consumption through lighting fixture and lamp conversions.
(Ongoing)

1.2.1 Create function-designated rooms with proper lighting, A/V, seating, furnishing, flooring, 
ventilation, etc., to complement and support specific activities. 
• Upon Board approval, with Recreation and Communications, begin the planning process to

develop the auditorium at Canoa Hills into a gymnasium. (April)
• With Recreation (Recreation to identify priority rooms to refit for specific purposes), develop

a three-to-five year prioritized plan to refit rooms. (November)
1.2.2 Assess spaces for specific activities and equip those spaces properly, such as art class space with 

washable floors. 
• Address flooring and room finishes that are activity-specific when performing scheduled

room improvements and flooring replacements. (Ongoing)
• With architect, present WC expansion options and cost estimates. (March)

1.2.3 Research and develop recommendations for providing food and beverage in certain centers. 
• Explore and recommend in-house or vendor options for Del Sol Clubhouse (March)
• Identify social gathering opportunities.

1.2.4 Evaluate and improve capital request process. 
• With Board, Recreation, and Finance, review and amend Capital Improvement Plan Policy as

needed. (June)
1.2.5 Employ newer technologies to benefit members’ abilities to fully utilize facilities. 

• Work with Recreation and IT to identify and relocate attendance readers at specific locations
to better track member usage and facilitate ease of access. (August)

1.3.3 Improve interior and exterior signage: complete, consistent, accessible, concise, attractive 
• With Communications, update signage throughout Santa Rita Springs and Las Campanas

(December)
1.4.1 Explore opportunities to establish a coffee shop. (See 1.2.3) 
1.4.2 Design peripheral grounds to provide outdoor recreation opportunities: park-like settings, 

walking trails, outdoor games, and activities. 
• (Combine with goal 1.4.3 below) Identify areas available for development. With

Communications and Recreation, conduct member outreach to identify preferred amenities
in those locations. Assemble a center-by-center prioritized plan. (December)

• Identify and begin implementing campus-wide locations for landscaping improvements to
include native pollinator species. (Ongoing)

1.4.3 Identify under-utilized areas that could be used for this purpose. (Social Gathering) 
• See 1.4.2

3.1.2 Explore the idea of allocating space for specialized fitness centers. 
• With Recreation, assess possibilities for a function-designed yoga space (October)

69



• With Recreation, investigate options for a small expansion of the fitness center at Las
Campanas which is currently scheduled for full expansion in 2027. (October).

4.2.1 Evaluate Maintenance Repair and Replacement (MRR) to confirm need. 
• With Finance, review and update annually (August)

4.4.3 Maintain and continue to utilize the Reserve Study (MR&R). 
• Complete MRR identified projects for FY2024. (December)
• With Finance, review MRR to be sure it includes all facilities and qualifying capital items.

(August)
• Consider approaches that minimize closures.

Finance Department 

1.1.4 Develop and adopt a rolling 5-year Capital Projects Plan aligned with the Strategic Plan. 
• Look to the Strategic Plan to inform the 5-year Capital Projects Plan. (Annually)
• With Board, review and amend Capital Improvement Plan Policy as needed. (June)

4.1.1 Identify options and tradeoffs for revenue diversification. 
• With staff and FAC, brainstorm options and alternatives; identify costs and benefits of each;

develop top recommended list; present to Board recommendations. (July)
• With Communications and Membership, market membership to potential voluntary

members as has been planned and budgeted for 2024. (March)
4.2.1 Evaluate Maintenance Repair and Replacement (MR&R) to confirm need. (See Facilities) 
4.3.1 Update and recommend financial policies.  

• Based on best practices, with FAC, continue updates to recommended financial policies, such
as cash management policies. (August)

4.3.3 Employ sound investment strategies to maximize passive income. 
• Continue utilizing sound, professional investment strategies; update policies as needed.

(Ongoing)
4.3.4 Provide continuous education for Board, committees, and staff about GVR financial 

management and positions so that they can make decisions to monitor effectively. 
• Provide improved and easier to understand budget document for 2025. (October)
• Initiatives projects
• Continue providing quarterly financial updates to Board and detailed financial statements to

the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC). The quarterly reports will be expanded in 2024 to include
the status of Capital Projects. (Ongoing)

• Provide annual primer on reading financial statements. (May)
• Receive unqualified audit opinion for 2023 financial audit. (March)
• Review Fund EZ Purchase Order System, and other third-party PO systems and implement.

The Fund EZ PO system was found to not be adequate for GVR’s needs. Other systems are
currently being reviewed. A budgeting and project costing system is to be researched in
2024. (September)

• Renew liability, workers’ comp, and flood insurance policies. (June)
• Perform successful workers’ comp audit. (August)
• Perform successful 401(k) audit. (August)

4.4.1 Review the 3-year annual financial forecast with the Board. 

70



• Present 3-year annual financial forecast as part of the annual budget document. (Annually)
4.4.3 Maintain and continue to utilize the Reserve Study (MR&R). (See Facilities) (Ongoing) 

Human Resources 

2.2.2 Implement standardized customer service training for all staff, based on clarified policies and 
expectations, to ensure consistency in service. (See also 5.3.3) 
• With departments, develop an updated customer service training plan for all departments

with differentiation and examples for each area, including dress and appearance policy, the
wearing of name tags, and standard phone and email dialogue. (July)

• Outline customer service training plan for new employees to be included as part of New
Employee Orientation. (July)

• Include all current employees in a similar program by the end of the year. (December)
2.2.4 Clarify communications procedures and distribute messaging to all staff so members receive 

consistent, trustworthy information from all GVR representatives 
• Develop and document an SOP that identifies types of messages to be disseminated to

various personnel. (September)
• Additional layering of accurate, up-to-date information sent directly to staff.  Continue

weekly “Staff Bulletin.” (Ongoing)
• Review and maintenance of internal GVR Intranet employee information pages. (Ongoing)
• Website careers’ page branding and messaging update. (February)

3.2.1 Develop a sustainable volunteer program, including recruiting and training of volunteers, to 
support GVR activities. 
• With Board and Recreation, identify opportunities for volunteerism. (June)
• Update or develop volunteer job descriptions as needed. (September)

5.3.3 Provide training and team activities to help people demonstrate these GVR values. 
• With the CEO and department heads, develop plans and agendas, and schedule regular

meetings with all staff and departmental groups to inform employees about and
demonstrate values. (Ongoing)

• Explore, develop, and provide in-service and training opportunities for supervisors on
Performance Management plans and strategies. (September)

5.3.4 Incorporate values into performance management 
• Update and re-launch a performance management plan with GVR values incorporated.

(February)
5.4.1 Encourage staff and Board to attend training conferences and participate in professional 

associations 
• Continue to work with staff to explore and encourage attendance. (Ongoing)

Member Services Department 

2.2.1 Implement a quality assurance system to ensure that exceptional customer service is 
happening, such as secret shopper, a review schedule to see how systems and processes are 
operating. 

71



• Develop and improve the Member Services function to ensure a high touch level of customer
service that builds confidence and trust from our members and Board. (Ongoing)

• Partner with attorney to work toward becoming the expert with regards to GVR’s boundary,
master development agreements, deed restrictions, title agreements, and collections. (Work
in progress) (Ongoing)

• During one-on-one meetings, review systems and processes with staff to ensure consistency
of understanding and of use and identify and implement improvements where needed.
(Ongoing)

• Continue to explore and find solutions to identify and decrease membership and guest card
misuse. (Ongoing)

• Develop a comprehensive strategy/plan to survey members after interactions with CSRs,
RSAs, Reservations, and any other identified staff. (April)

• Implement survey plan to obtain feedback from members regarding recent customer service
interactions with staff. (October)

• Partner with Communications to create a comprehensive New Member Welcome Packet.
(March)

• Partner with Communications to create a realtor information sheet. (November)
3.3.1 Conduct a policy and process review. 

• Identify policies and processes requiring member engagement. (July)
• Map processes and steps. (December)
• Identify and implement process improvements from a customer-centric perspective.

(December)
• Investigate possible alternatives to our current membership database to add donation

capabilities and improve overall experience (October)

Recreation Department 

1.1.2 Assess and improve fitness center functionality. 
• Work with facilities on plans to expand the Las Campanas Fitness Center. (August)

1.2.4 Evaluate and improve capital request process. 
• With Board, Recreation, and Finance, review and amend Capital Improvement Plan Policy as

needed. (June)
1.2.5 Employ newer technologies to benefit members’ abilities to fully utilize faculties (See Facilities) 
1.4.1 Explore opportunities to establish a coffee shop, etc. (See Facilities 1.2.3) 

• Identify additional social gathering opportunities.
1.4.2 Design peripheral grounds to provide outdoor recreation opportunities: park-like settings, 

walking trails, outdoor games, and activities (See Facilities) 
1.4.3 Identify under-utilized areas that could be used for this purpose (See Facilities) 
2.1.1 Review current programming and make adjustments, if needed, to ensure variety and alignment 

with current and future member needs. 
• Through member surveys, identify gaps and needed adjustments. (Ongoing)
• Secure beer and wine licenses for identified locations (July)

2.1.2 Explore a varied activity/service structure that accommodates all income levels. (See 2.1.1) 
2.1.3 Explore the possibility of virtual offerings for part-time residents and those homebound. (See 

72



2.1.1) 
• Develop a comprehensive report or memo on outcomes of exploration (June)

2.1.4 Review and improve, if necessary, processes to assess quality of services and programs. 
• Complete inventory of drop-in recreation supplies and equipment. Develop a rough “MRR” to

ensure supplies and equipment are replaced in a timely manner. (July)
2.2.5 Develop and implement a member experience review plan related to customer service by 

department (Similar to 2.2.1) 
• See Member Services

2.3.1 Explore changes in process of instructor hiring, actively recruiting instructors to meet member 
needs. 
• Investigate local college/university resources (June)
• Require all instructors to complete a background check. (Ongoing)

2.3.2 Explore guidelines with evaluation criteria for instructors and make improvements, if necessary. 
• Develop/update criteria and make improvements. (August)

3.1.2 Explore the idea of allocating space for specialized fitness centers. (See Facilities) 
3.1.3 Continue to identify programming and events that members want. 

• Survey members who have not used their GVR card in the past 24 months to find out what
programs, amenities, or events might inspire them to participate. (August)

3.1.4 Develop a prioritized 5-year plan for programming events. 
• With P&E, complete a 5-year plan for developing new recreation opportunities (December)

3.3.1 Conduct a policy and process review. 
• Work with IT to review process simplification and possibility of creating online forms.

(October)

73



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

CPM Change to 6.2.8 Club Reporting 
And Records Management 

Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: February 28, 2024 

Presented By: Carol Crothers, Chair 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Recreation Department/Clubs 
Action Requested: 
Remove sentence from 6.2.8.B that no longer applies. “All clubs shall maintain a continuity of 
records and shall preserve all correspondence and minutes for a period of no less than three 
years.” 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 
Background Justification: 
The Recreation Department has requested to remove the first sentence of 6.2.8.B which 
states: “All clubs shall maintain a continuity of records and shall preserve all correspondence 
and minutes for a period of no less than three years.”  

The Administration has a Retention Schedule that requires minutes to be kept for seven 
years for the Clubs. The last sentence of 6.2.8.B covers this retention schedule and states: 
“Club records are kept for the prescribed period of time in accordance with administrative 
policies for record retention.” 

Board Options: 
1) Board approve the change to CPM Part 6, 6.2.8.B by removing the first sentence.
2) Board offer another suggestion, and move to approve the suggested change.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve removal of the first sentence in 6.2.8.B which reads “All clubs shall maintain 
a continuity of records and shall preserve all correspondence and minutes for a period of no 
less than three years.” 

Attachments: 
1) CPM 6.2.8 Redlined

Action Item 7.C

74



6.2.8 Club Reporting and Records Management 
A. All GVR Clubs are required to sign and submit an Annual Club

Agreement which outlines the club’s responsibilities to GVR and
what they can expect from GVR in return. If a club refuses to sign

or does not fulfill their requirements, GVR may require the club
to meet with the CEO or designee.

B. All clubs shall maintain a continuity of records and shall preserve
all correspondence and minutes for a period of no less than three
years. Club records are kept for the prescribed period of time in

accordance with administrative policies for record retention.

Attachment 1

75



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Facility Use, Reservations, and Rentals 
Prepared By: Natalie Whitman, COO, for BAC     Meeting Date: February 28, 2024 

Presented By: Carol Crothers, Natalie Whitman    Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee, Operations 
Action Requested: 
Approve the attached proposed changes to GVR’s facility use policy 
Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 2: Provide quality services and programs that effectively meet the recreational, social, 
and leisure education needs of our membership.  

Goal 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation. 

Background Justification: 
1. GVR’s current reservation policies and practices do not adequately prioritize GVR’s
recreation programs.
2. Members have expressed that some common (non-dedicated) spaces are difficult for them
to access due to the reservation practices of user groups.
3. Key policies are missing, especially those related to reserving common amenities (eg.
reserving a pool for a birthday party) and commercial rentals.
4. A few existing policies are needlessly restrictive

Notes related to changes to the attached redlined CPM: 
1.2.6.B: Prioritizes recreation opportunities available to all members 
1.2.6.C: Prioritizes recreation opportunities available to all members. Reserved activities and 
events are resource-intensive: Two to four staff members are involved in each reservation. 
Administrative processes involve calls, emails, document retention, and data entry. Field 
services staff take calls and have in-person appointments to discuss room setups. Very often, 
a third staffer is involved in setting up the room, and a fourth in tearing it down and tidying it 
for the next user. This change reduces the costs associated with staff-supported activities, 
while allowing members to continue using available rooms on a drop-in, self-help basis.  

1.2.6.D  Improves equitable access to rooms for all members. 

1.2.6.F and G Currently missing policy 

1.2.6.N.2 Eliminates needless requirement 

1.2.8.C.1 Increases member options  

1.2.9.D Prioritizes recreation opportunities available to all members. Some private user 
groups take full advantage of GVR’s unusual “free reservations” policy and schedule many 
resource-intensive socials per year. This policy change will reduce resources needed to 

Action Item 7.D

76



support complimentary, private events and free up space for GVR programs available to all 
members. 

1.2.9.D.1 Formalizes a long-time quiet staff practice 

1.2.9.I GVR has been renting facilities to commercial entities with no policy to guide staff. 
Without guidelines regarding the nature of the entity or activity, staff are left making 
judgment calls rooted in their personal values and perceptions of a business’s legitimacy.  

Board Options: 
1) Approve BAC-recommended policy changes with implementation dates to be

determined by staff.
2) Suggest changes

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve the BAC recommended changes to CPM Part 1, Section 2 Use of GVR Facilities. 

Attachments: 
1) CPM 1 Facility Use Redlined
2) Summary of recommended policy changes

77



PART 1: MEMBERSHIP AND FACILITIES 

SECTION 2 - USE OF GVR FACILITIES 

1.2.6 Use of GVR Facilities 
A. Operational policies related to reservations are set by the GVR

administration and posted on the GVR website. Reservations are
available for parties of six or more GVR Members and their 

authorized guests. Reservations are required if staff assistance 
or the use of equipment is expected. Reservation policies are set 

by the CEO and published on the GVR website. 
1. Reservations will be assigned in the following order:

a. Board of Directors Essential corporate business

b. Recreation Staff programs (e.g., special events,
classes and lessons, concerts, programs, annual

festivals and performances)
b.c. Club one-time annual special events
c.d. Regularly scheduled club events activities (weekly 

and monthly) per current operating guidelines 
d.e. HOA and Ccommunity events (e.g., HOA) and

rentals 
e. Club one-time special events or parties

f. Private member functions and three-month groups.

Reservations for these activities require attendance
of six or more members.

g. Club additional ongoing activity requests Non-
member rentals 

B. Club and HOA business meetings are limited to non-peak hours:

after 2pm on weekdays and during all operating hours on the
weekend. Animals are not permitted in or on GVR property, with

the exception of service animals, unless otherwise authorized by 
the GVR Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to accommodate 
community events or other special circumstances. 

C. Three-month Groups are limited to one reservation per week.
Where static set-ups are established, three-month groups will be

free to rearrange the room at their discretion, and return the
room to the condition in which it was found. No coffee or water
service will be provided. No firearms are allowed on any GVR 

property or in any GVR facilities except law enforcement or 
licensed security. 

D. Reservations for private member functions are limited to six hours
per event. Reservations for Three-Month Groups are limited to

four hours per event. It is the policy of GVR to provide and
maintain a drug-free environment for its members and 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.5",  No bullets or

Attachment 1

78



employees. As such, GVR prohibits the use of illegal drugs on GVR 
premises. 

E. All reservation must be made by a staff member or a member in
good standing who shall be the primary contact for staff.

Pursuant to the Smoke-Free Arizona Act (A.R.S.§36-601.01), 
GVR prohibits smoking in all indoor facilities and outside areas 
within 20 feet of all entrances and windows. Smoking is prohibited 

in pool areas and in all GVR vehicles. Smoking will be allowed in 
designated outdoor areas only. 

F. Sports facilities (e.g. court arrays and pools) may only be
reserved by GVR Clubs formed with the express purpose of
pursuing activities associated with the facility they wish to

reserve. Water Aerobics groups formed before 2023 may be
granted an exception to this policy. GVR prohibits vaping in all

non-smoking areas, including in all indoor facilities and areas 
within 20 feet of all entrances and windows. Vaping is prohibited 
in pool areas and in all GVR vehicles. Vaping will be allowed in 

designated outdoor areas and wherever smoking is allowed. 
G. Some rooms and facilities are limited to certain designated uses.

Carpeted meeting rooms, for example, may not be available for
exercise groups to limit wear and tear, odor and conditions

affecting subsequent users. Some spaces must be reserved or
rented together (e.g. Room 1 in West Center must be included in
a reservation or rental that includes the auditorium and kitchen.)

GVR facilities will not be used by any member for commercial 
purposes with the following exceptions: 

1. With the prior written approval of GVR administration, a
GVR Member may temporarily display items for sale at a 
particular facility if they are intended to assist or benefit those 

using that facility to participate in the associated/related activity; 
and 

2. Personal sales resulting from hobby pursuits.
H. Animals are not Only working ADA Service Animals are permitted

in or on GVR property, aside from GVR programs or events. , with

the exception of service animals,  unless otherwise authorized by 
the GVR CEO or their designee. It is the responsibility of each 

individual seller to obtain an Arizona Transaction Privilege Tax 
License. 

I. Audible media is not permitted in communal areas (e.g. pool

decks, picnic areas, lobbies, sports courts, and fitness centers)
except for GVR sponsored special events, special club events by

reservation, and GVR dances. Members must use personal
listening devices such as headphones or earbuds, or confine
music audio media to recreation rooms at decibel levels that do

not disturb facility users outside the room. Liquor Policy
1. The sale of intoxicating beverages is not permitted on GVR

premises without a special sales permit or liquor license and 
appropriate liquor liability policy. Prior to applying for a liquor 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or

79



license, permission must be received from the GVR CEO. 
2. Members are permitted to bring their own beverages

(BYOB) to an activity, if allowed by the host. However, written 
permission must be obtained from GVR at the time the 

reservation agreement is signed or prior to the event or activity. 
No alcohol may be stored in a GVR facility. 

J. No firearms are allowed on any GVR property or in any GVR

facilities except those carried by law enforcement or licensed
security personnel operating with the authorization of the GVR

administration.
K. It is the policy of GVR to provide and maintain a drug-free

environment for its members and employees. As such, GVR 

prohibits the use of illegal drugs on GVR premises. 
K. Pursuant to the Smoke-Free Arizona Act (A.R.S.§36-601.01),

GVR prohibits smoking in all indoor facilities and outside areas within 20
feet of entrances and windows. Smoking is prohibited in pool areas and
in all GVR vehicles. Smoking and vaping will be are allowed in

designated outdoor areas only.
L. GVR facilities will not be used by any member for commercial

purposes with the following exceptions:
1. With prior written approval of GVR administration, a GVR

Member may temporarily display items for sale at a particular
facility if they are intended to assist or benefit those using that
facility to participate in the associated/related activity; and

2. Personal sale resulting from hobby pursuits as part of an
approved exhibit and per current administrative guidelines.

M. It is the responsibility of each individual seller to obtain an Arizona
Transaction Privilege Tax License.

N. Liquor Policy

1. The sale of intoxicating beverages is not permitted on GVR
premises without a special sales permit or liquor license and

appropriate liquor liability policy. Prior to applying for a liquor
license, permission must be received from the GVR CEO or their
designee.

2. Members are permitted to bring their own beverages (BYOB) to
an activity if allowed by the host. However, written permission

must be obtained from GVR at the time the reservation 
agreement is signed or prior to the event or activity. No alcohol 
may be stored in a GVR facility. 

K. 

1.2.7 Political Activities 
A. GVR Members may circulate petitions and/or solicit support or

opposition of GVR candidates or ballot issues in GVR facility lobby

areas, common areas, and parking lots as long as such activities
do not interfere with GVR operations or facility reservations or
violate fire code regulations as determined by GVR staff.

B. Surveys, opinion polls and questionnaires related to GVR affairs,
and distributed on GVR property, may be circulated by members

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or numbering,

Tab stops: Not at  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5", Hanging:  0.25"

Formatted: COM - 1., Indent: Left:  1.25", Hanging: 

0.25"

80



only after being reviewed by GVR administration for accuracy and 
suitability. 

C. GVR facilities facility areas may be rented for political party
meetings, campaign events, polling places, and informational

presentations such as candidate forums or town hall meetings,
whether related to GVR elections or outside political causes,
subject to space availability.

D. Advertising or promotional signage for non-GVR elected positions
(e.g., public sector election campaigns), including solicitation of

support/opposition regarding candidates or ballot issues is NOT
permitted on GVR property except as follows:
1. Within rented meeting space during the rental period; or

2. In public areas and parking lots of a GVR facility being used
as a polling place on election day or as an early voting site

during the period of early voting.

1.2.8 Special Uses 
A. Use of Hobby Shops and Studios

1. These facilities are monitored by volunteers. When asked,

members and guests must show their GVR membership or 
guest cards to use the facilities. Clubs have the right to 

restrict use of club facilities to club members only. 
B. Use of Kitchens

1. Kitchens are available for use by reservation only. Kitchens

and grills are subject to non-refundable cleaning fees as 
outlined in the reservation agreement. 

1.2. GVR kitchens are classified as catering kitchens. Food 
preparation and cooking is not allowed. Kitchen facilities 
may be used for warming pre-cooked food or for chilling 

cold entrées. 
C. Use of Caterers

1. Users engaging caterers who do not appear on GVR’s
authorized caterer’s list must submit a copy of the caterer’s

health department issueddepartment-issued license at the
time the reservation agreement is finalized. made.Caterers
must be registered and approved by GVR in order to work 

in GVR facilities. Contact the central reservation office 
located at the Administrative Offices for a current list of 

approved caterers. 
D. Use of Storage

1. GVR may provide clubs small storage space, at no cost, to

clubs if space is available.
2. Clubs may provide locks, but must provide a copy to GVR

staff.
3. GVR is not liable for any property lost, damaged or stolen

while in storage.

E. Use of Equipment Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 5 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  1.5" + Tab after:  2" + Indent at:  2"

81



1. GVR may provide and maintain furniture and equipment in
the facilities for the recreational use of its members. 

F.E. GVR Pool Management Policies 
1. GVR offers heated swimming pools and spas for member

use. 
1. Hours of operation are established and posted by GVR

administration. 

2.1. GVR pools shall operate in compliance with Pima County 
Code Title 8, Chapter 8.322, “Swimming Pool and Spas,” 

and any other applicable Pima County regulations. 
3.2. GVR staff has authority to close a swimming pool or spa if 

they determine that its operation and use presents 

danger to individuals. 
4.3. GVR follows the guidelines provided by the National 

Lightning Safety Institute (NLSI) to determine when to 
close indoor and outdoor swimming pools, and spas and 
showers due to lightning as a safety precaution. As of 

August 2014, Per NLSI guidelines state: 
a. Both outdoor and indoor pools and showers will be

evacuated before or when lightning is within five
miles.

b. At the first signs of thunder or lightning occurring
within five miles of an aquatic facility, all pool decks
will close and shower activities will be suspended

until 30 minutes after the last observed thunder or
lightning.

1.2.9 Rentals and Fees 
A. The CEO will implement a board-approved fee schedule for rental

of GVR facilities. The CEO is authorized to waive facility rental
fees in special circumstances, as deemed appropriate.

1. Damage DepositDamage deposits as identified in operational policy will be 
required for rentals by non-GVR members and may be required for member use 
depending on the nature of the member activity. 

A.B. 
B.C. Rental fees for groups composed solely of GVR Members engaging

in low impact recreation activities shall be waived. ; however, all 

individuals and groups (whether member or non-member) may 
be charged fees for special computer and technology setups; 

internet connections; LED projection; special sound system or 
lighting requirements, overtime cleanup charges, or labor 
charges for special setup needs which require additional 

personnel. 
D. Members and groups composed solely of GVR Members are

granted two up to six no-fee socialsprivate events (potlucks, 
parties, dances, HOA socials) per calendar year. These events 
may be scheduled every other month. Subsequent or more 

Formatted: COM - A.

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 5 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  1.5" + Tab after:  2" + Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Left, Outline numbered + Level: 5 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  1.5" + Tab after:  2" + Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 5 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  1.5" + Tab after:  2" + Indent at:  2"

82



frequent socialsprivate events will be subject to current rental 
fees. In all cases, kitchen or grill cleaning fees may be charged. 

Reservations for socials are limited to 4.5 hours. GVR is interested 
in supporting community service events, and may rent its 

facilities on a fee basis for such events whenever it is practical to 
do so. A community service event is normally sponsored by a 
non-profit organization or local government agency. 

1) Memorial and celebration of life services for GVR
Members or members of their immediate family are 

not subject to rental fees and do not count toward 
the annual limit of two socials. 

C.2) GVR clubs are exempt from this annual limit. 

E. Club and HOA meetings are limited to non-peak hours: after 2pm
on weekdays and during all operating hours on weekends. The 

CEO may authorize use of GVR facilities on a complimentary or 
fee basis for any GVR-sponsored, GVR co-sponsored, or GVR 
Foundation event or activity. 

F. GVR is interested in supporting community service events, and
may rent its facilities on a fee basis for such events whenever it

is practical to do so. A community service event is normally
sponsored by a non-profit organization or local government

agency.
D.G. The CEO may authorize us of GVR facilities on a complimentary

or fee basis for any GVR-sponsored, or GVR co-sponsored, or GVR 

Foundation event or activity.  
H. Fees may be charged to recover the cost of any specialized

services, events or programs.
E.I. Commercial Rentals (rentals by businesses for the purpose of

conducting business) are not permitted.: 

SECTION 3 - SUSPENSION OF PRIVILEGES 

1.3.1 Suspension for Delinquency 
Any GVR Member who has not paid dues, fees or assessments as of the 
time such payment is due becomes delinquent and shall automatically 

be declared a ‘Member Not in Good Standing.’ Any GVR Member Not in 
Good Standing and his/her Additional Card Holder, Assigned Member 

and/or Tenants and Guests shall not be entitled to use GVR facilities. 
The delinquent member shall not hold any office, nor vote in any 
election. Upon payment of all delinquent dues, penalties, fees, 

assessments, together with the cost of collection, said member shall be 
restored to good standing. 

1.3.2 Suspension for Conduct 
A. Any cardholder who violates the established rules and regulations

of GVR is subject to suspension of privileges. Copies of rules and
regulations are posted within GVR facilities.

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:

1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

2.31" + Indent at:  2.56"

83



B. The CEO or designee has the authority to determine if a violation
is major or minor. The CEO or designee is authorized to

immediately deny any individual access to facilities for a period
of up to ten (10) days for minor violations, including, but not

limited to, failure to provide his/her membership card or other
GVR identification card. In the event of a major violation,
including but not limited to violation of any law, physical

confrontation, verbal abuse, the CEO or designee shall have the
authority to immediately deny any individual access to facilities

until the violation can be investigated.
C. Minor Incidents - Upon receipt of a complaint from a GVR member

or staff, the CEO or designee will investigate the complaint as

follows:
1. Contact the person who filed the complaint.

2. Contact witnesses or those parties to the incident which
resulted in the complaint.

3. Contact the individual(s) against whom the complaint was

filed, either in person or by phone. If direct contact is not
available, the contact may be made by email or letter.

4. The CEO shall then determine if the complaint is valid. If
the complaint is determined to be valid, the individual(s)

may be subject to counseling, either in person or by letter,
or may be subject to suspension of any or all privileges,
and/or use of facilities for a period not to exceed ten (10)

calendar days. The decision of the CEO is final.
D. Major Incidents – The CEO or designee shall take immediate

action and personally handle the situation as follows:
1. Contact the Board President immediately.
2. The CEO, the Board President and the Board Affairs

Committee Chair shall conduct an investigation within two
(2) weeks. They shall convene a meeting with the

individual and/or a representative against whom the
complaint was lodged as well as the complainant. During
the process, the accusing party has the right to submit

verbal or written information subject to rebuttal by the
accused and witnesses, if any.

3. Upon completion of the above, a report on the findings of
the investigation, along with recommended actions will be
presented to the Board.

E. The Board will convene in an Executive Session within two (2)
weeks to review the report, discuss the particulars of the incident

and decide on the appropriate action. If a majority of the Board,
then in office, determines that a suspension is warranted, the
duration and nature of the suspension must be determined. The

suspension may apply to the use of all GVR facilities or select
facilities.

1. The original suspension determined by the CEO shall be
extended until this process has been accomplished.

84



2. If the Board decides to continue the suspension, the CEO
shall send the individual and/or representative a written

“Notice of Suspension” within 48 hours of the Board’s
decision. The “Notice of Suspension” shall include the

details of the suspension, as well as the appeal procedure.
3. If the individual and/or representative opts to appeal the

Board’s suspension of a major issue, the CEO will notify the

Board President and will appoint an Appeals Officer(s) to
hear the appeal. The CEO will provide the individual with

the date, time and location for presentation of that appeal.
The suspension shall continue until the process has been
completed. A written response may be presented in lieu of

a personal appearance. The Appeals Officer(s) shall be
authorized to decide if the proposed suspension should be

upheld, reduced or cancelled. Unless the Appeals Officer(s)
decides that the suspension should be cancelled or be
reduced, the decision of the Board shall be final.

85



Summary of Proposed Reservations Policy Changes 

1. Change in the priority order to include club one-time annual special events
(Artisan’s Festival, for example) and eliminate “club additional ongoing activity
requests.”

2. Private member activities and Three-Month Groups must have a minimum of six
attendees to make a reservation.

3. Three-Month Groups must maintain attendance of six or more GVR members. If
attendance falls below the minimum for more than two weeks in a row, remaining
reservations may be canceled.

4. Groups that fail to arrive for their reserved activity may lose their reservation
privileges for up to six months.

5. Club and HOA business meetings (vs. club activities and socials) are limited to non-
peak hours from October thru April: after 2pm on weekdays and any time on
weekends.

6. Three-month groups are limited to one reservation per week.

a. Where static setups exist in reserved rooms, three-month groups will self-
help to rearrange as needed and return the room to the established static
setup before they leave.

b. Three-month groups are limited to four hours per reservation.

7. Complimentary private member functions (HOA socials, birthday parties, etc.) are
limited to one every other month and six hours per event. Subsequent or more
frequent reservations are subject to current rental fees. GVR clubs are exempt from
the 2-per-year limit.

8. Memorials and celebrations of life for members and members of their immediate
families are not subject to fees and do not count toward the 2-per-year limit.

9. No commercial rentals will be permitted. Staff proposes adding clarifying language:
rentals by businesses for the purpose of conducting business. This clarification
would allow businesses to rent rooms for staff retreats or staff parties.

Attachment 2

86



10. Formalizes a long-time practice: sports facilities (for example, a pool or an entire
array of courts) may only be reserved by a GVR club formed with the express
purpose of pursuing activities associated with that facility.

11. Some spaces will always be reserved/rented together. For instance, if reserving the
auditorium and kitchen at West Center, one must also reserve or rent Room 1.

12. Resolves a long-time issue: audible media is not permitted in communal areas (for
example, lobbies, picnic areas, sports courts, fitness centers) except for GVR-
sponsored special events, special club events by reservation, and GVR dances.

13. Members no longer need to seek GVR permission to include adult beverages in their
activities.

14. Members will not be limited to using caterers on an approved list. GVR will maintain
a list of authorized caterers. Members will also be free to engage any caterer
currently licensed by Pima County if they submit a copy of the caterer’s license at
the time the reservation is finalized.

a. Caterer fees will no longer apply. All users reserving grills or kitchens in major
centers will pay a cleaning fee.

15. Clubs are required to provide staff with copies of keys to storage areas or storage
containers on GVR property.

16. Change to damage deposit language. Currently, the CPM states that damage
deposits will be charged. This has not been GVR’s standard practice. New proposed
language: Damage deposits as identified in operational policy will be required for
rentals by non-GVR members and may be required for member use depending on
the nature of the member activity.

87



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

GVR Official Rules Wallyball Club 
Prepared By: Natalie Whitman, COO Meeting Date: February 28, 2024 

Presented By: Natalie Whitman, COO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department:  
Operations, Recreation 
Action Requested: 
Review and approve the attached application to create a GVR Wallyball Club 
Strategic Plan: 
Goal 2: Provide quality services and programs that effectively meet the recreational, social, 
and leisure education needs of our membership, allocating resources to support those 
programs. 

Background Justification: 
A group of wallyball players has long operated outside GVR policy by reserving the 
racquetball center for play, three times per week. The group is seeking club status in order 
to: 

• ensure play time through court reservations
• be able to store nets and balls on-site

Wallyball is a cousin of volleyball, designed to be played by teams of 2-4 players inside a 
racquetball court since the primary difference between the two games is that the ball may be 
played off the walls in wallyball.  

The GVR Volleyball Club currently plays wallyball, however, the club does not allow skill-rated 
teams. The group applying for club status is seeking opportunities for skilled players to enjoy 
competitive games along with more leisurely games for newer or less adept players. Per the 
CPM, new clubs may form as long as a similar GVR club does not already exist. The Volleyball 
Club’s philosophy that all games should welcome players of all levels is incompatible with the 
wallyball group’s desire to have the option of competitive play. Since a compromise could not 
be reached on this matter, if a wallyball club is approved by the Board, the Volleyball Club 
will be asked to curtail their wallyball activities. 

Relevant CPM Passages: 

SECTION 2 - GVR CLUBS  

6.2.1 Organization  
A. Any group with thirty-five (35) or more GVR Members, interested in pursuing a particular
field of interest, consistent with the mission of GVR, may join together and form a GVR Club,
as long as a similar club doesn’t already exist within GVR.
B. All members of a group requesting “Club Status” must be members of GVR.

Action Item 7.E

88



C. The group may formally request that the Board grant them GVR “Club Status,” which
entitles the group to a scheduling priority for reserving GVR facilities on an annual basis.
D. A club application, available online and at the Administrative Offices, must be submitted to
the GVR Club Liaison.
E. The Club Liaison shall review the completed application and submit a written
recommendation to the CEO or designee.
F. When the CEO or designee approves the prospective club for recommendation to the
Board, representatives from the club shall be invited to attend the next meeting of the Board
to speak on behalf of the club.
G. If the Board approves the request for club status, the Club Liaison will notify the Club
President.
H. If a prospective club request is denied the CEO shall notify the Club Representative in
writing.
I. The newly established club will operate independently of GVR but will be required to follow
all rules and guidelines set forth by the Board.
J. The Club Liaison will retain a club file in his/her office.

Fiscal Impact: 
Minimal 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the attached application for club status
2) Deny the application

Staff Recommendation: 
#1 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve club status for the GVR Official Rules Wallyball Club. 

Attachments: 
1) Application for club status

89



Attachment 1

90



91



92



93



94



95



Membership Roster on file with GVR Club Liaison

96



Office use only 

___ Reservations 
___ Website  
___  Master

SUBMITTED BY: _________________________________________ DATE: _______________________ 

GVR # Name Address/Zip Code 
Phone Number 

and Email address 

President 

Vice
 President 

Secretary 

Treasurer 

Other 

1. Club Members designated to make GVR Facility Reservations and sign Reservation Contracts

Member Name:   _______________________________________  Phone: _____________________ 

Alternate Member Name: ________________________________   Phone: _____________________ 

Officer

2023 GVR CLUB OFFICERS’ INFORMATION
This fillable form must be submitted to GVR Club Liaison by February 1st

If a change of Officers occurs during the year, immediately submit an updated form to 

GVR Club Liaison, Kathy Edwards – kathye@gvrec.org, (520) 495-5843 

GVR CLUB NAME: ________________________________________ # OF CLUB MEMBERS ________ 

2. Annual Dues   $____________________

3. Date of Club Bylaws  ______________

97



The GVR website has an informational listing for each GVR Club.  Please update the following 
information for your Club. With respect to privacy, have each contact sign below.   

4. Please list the contacts for this Club to be displayed on the GVR website.
Each Club has established a club email address that is monitored by club member(s).

*Primary Contact ___________________________________    Phone (opt.) __________________

*Secondary Contact __________________________________  Phone (opt.) _________________

*Club Website _____________________________  Club Email _____________________________

5. REQUIRED - Updates to GVR Website

Review club listing on gvrec.org – Recreation – Clubs. Attach additional sheet if necessary.

*By signing this document I give my permission to GVR to post the information on the Website as indicated in
Item (5) above.

Primary Contact Signature: _______________________________     Date: _______________ 

Secondary Contact Signature: _____________________________     Date: _______________ 

98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Ceramics Kiln Room Enhancements 
Prepared By: Kathi Bachelor, P&E Chair Meeting Date: February 28, 2024  

Presented By: Kathi Bachelor, P&E Chair Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Planning and Evaluation Committee 

Action Requested: 
Approve revised uses of the funds budgeted for the Ceramics kiln room 

Strategic Plan: 
GOAL 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities  

Background Justification: 
The Capital budget in the amount of $90,000, approved by the Board, was to bring the 
Ceramics kiln room at Desert Hills up to code. It has been determined that the kiln room was 
up to county code but needed improvements to accommodate the addition of a kiln 
(purchased by the Ceramics Club) and to meet manufacturer specifications for spacing. The 
architect has determined that the fifth kiln can be installed without moving any walls. The 
current budget would be used for the following upgrades: 
A) Extend the fire-resistant flooring to properly space the kilns per manufacturer

recommendations including the new fifth kiln.
B) Redesign the electrical service to the room to accommodate the new placement of the

kilns.
C) Provide structural modifications needed to accommodate the additional weight on the

floor for the fifth kiln.
D) Enhance ventilation to mitigate the heat in the room.

Fiscal Impact: 
None other than to revise the use of the already budgeted funds. Once staff has revised the 
cost estimate, if more funds were needed, we would come back to the Board for approval. 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the revised use of current approved funds of $90,000 as stated.
2) Recommend an alternative.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1 
Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the revised upgrades to the Ceramics kiln room at Desert Hills within the 
current budgeted amount of $90,000. 

Attachments: 
None 

Action Item 7.F

113


	ADP3733.tmp
	Del Sol Subcommittee Business Plan for the Del Sol Café��Report to the GVR Board  �
	 
	Major Events since last FAC of January 17th 
	Key Highlights from new Section 2 of the Business Plan
	FAC Subcommittee Report: ��Market Survey Results for Development of a Del Sol Clubhouse Café  ��
	Objectives of Survey
	Survey Results: Response, Concept, Familiarity
	Survey Results: Hours of Availability Preferences
	Survey Results: Food and Beverage Preferences
	Survey Results: Estimated Use
	Survey Results: Delivery Option
	Survey Results: Non GVR Member Access and Allowing Dogs
	CPM NonMember Language 
	CPM – Pet Friendly Language  
	Timetable : Del Sol Construction and Impact on Café�GVR Board has included the Subcommittee’s Report on its February 28th Board Agenda   
	Recommendation from Subcommittee  
	FAC- Action Recommended to the Board  

	ADPA7FC.tmp
	FAC Subcommittee Report: ��Market Survey Results for Development of a Del Sol Clubhouse Café  ��
	Objectives of Survey
	Survey Results: Response, Concept, Familiarity
	Survey Results: Hours of Availability Preferences
	Survey Results: Food and Beverage Preferences
	Survey Results: Estimated Use
	Survey Results: Delivery Option
	Survey Results: Non GVR Member Access and Allowing Dogs

	Attachment 2024 0205 Application Wallyball Club.pdf
	2024 0205 2023 GVR Club Officers List - fillable form.pdf
	ENTER UPDATES OR TYPE 'NONE"
	*Club Website:
	Untitled
	Untitled


	Attachment Del Sol Cafe Business Plan.pdf
	01162024 FAC Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Fiscal Affairs Committee
	Board Members present: Kathy Bachelor

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	GVR CLUB NAME: GVR Official Rules Wallyball
	OF CLUB MEMBERS: 38
	SUBMITTED BY: Jane Stambaugh
	DATE: 10/17/23
	GVR#_Pres: On file
	NamePresident: Frances Cooke
	AddressZip CodePresident: 
	Phone Number and Email addressPresident: 
	GVR#_VP: On file
	NameVice President: JoAnn Jurries
	AddressZip CodeVice President: 
	Phone Number and Email addressVice President: 
	GVR#_Secy: On file
	NameSecretary: Jay Solerno
	AddressZip CodeSecretary: 
	Phone Number and Email addressSecretary: 
	GVR#_Treas: On file
	NameTreasurer: Jay Solerno
	AddressZip CodeTreasurer: 
	Phone Number and Email addressTreasurer: 
	GVR#_Other: On file -
Court
Coord.
	NameOther: Jane Stambaugh
	AddressZip CodeOther: 
	Phone Number and Email addressOther: 
	Member Name: Frances Cooke
	Phone: on file
	Alternate Member Name: Jane Stambaugh
	Phone_2: on file
	2 Annual Dues: 5.00
	BylawsDate: 10/18/23
	Primary Contact: Frances Cooke
	Phone_3: 
	Secondary Contact: Jane Stambaugh
	Phone_4: 
	Club Website: gvrOfficialRulesWallyball
	Club Email: tbd-publish after club is approved
	Text1: 


